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5,970,822 2.2
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( 41,419 ) 100.0
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( 25,071 ) 100.0
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1 4,298,857 105.45 453,299,886 101.11 434,657,417 | 97.8
2025 10
( 174 10 ) ()
HP ENTERPRISE HPE 6. 35%
i B b045/10/15| 2.0
ENERGY TRANS ET 8.00%
2 | o 2054/05/15| 1.8
COLUMBIA PIPE 0C CPGX
3 | 6.544% 11/15/2053 2053/11/15| 1.5
ALBERTSONS COS ACI 7.50%
4| b026/03/15| 1.4
GENERAL MOTORS C  GM
5 | 6.60% 04/01/2036 2036/04/01) 1.4
VISTRA CORP VST 8.00%
6 | perp 1.3
SEAGATE HDD CAYM STX
7| 9.625% 12/01/2032 2032/12/01| 1.3
EMERA INC EWACN 6.75%
8 | oo i 2076/06/15| 1.3
AVKOR TECH INC  AWKR
9 | 6.625% 09/15/2027 2027/09/15| 1.2
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10 | g e b033/04/15| 1.2
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2025
2024 2025

2019 10 31 147,770,941.31 22,116,877 107.37 16,070
2020 10 31 270,736,473.62 40,521,128 107.37 16,070
2021 10 31 465,898,446.53 69,731,020 115.13 17,232
2022 10 31 324,910,674.97 48,629,381 97.82 14,641
2023 10 31 286,808,961.80 42,926,697 98.60 14,757
2024 10 31 280,750,753.14 42,019,965 111.54 16,694
2024 291,860,369.64 43,682,742 108.54 16,245
280,575,022.46 41,993,664 106.18 15,892

282,349,863.24 42,259,304 108.14 16,185

280,712,077.80 42,014,177 108.57 16,250

281,925,658.08 42,195,813 110.16 16,488

281,743,244.82 42,168,511 111.17 16,639

284,914,484.90 42,643,151 112.93 16,902

10 280,750,753.14 42,019,965 111.54 16,694

11 284,933,057.50 42,645,931 113.75 17,025

12 277,805,200.23 41,579,104 111.33 16,663

2025 277,131,655.08 41,478,295 112.44 16,829
276,734,845.03 41,418,904 112.91 16,899
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2019 10 31 97,818,154.86 14,640,443 104.18 15,593
2020 10 31 177,235,749.33 26,526,875 101.12 15,135
2021 10 31 267,753,142.13 40,074,613 105.37 15,771
2022 10 31 193,938,718.92 29,026,808 86.75 12,984
2023 10 31 173,041,577.37 25,899,133 84.51 12,649
2024 10 31 171,998,658.54 25,743,039 92.49 13,843
2024 177,706,526.58 26,597,336 91.74 13,731
170,342,872.65 25,495,218 89.49 13,394

171,081,253.80 25,605,731 90.90 13,605

170,541,909.81 25,525,008 91.01 13,621

172,055,338.51 25,751,523 92.09 13,783

171,900,917.72 25,728,410 92.68 13,871

175,234,771.50 26,227,388 93.90 14,054

10 171,998,658.54 25,743,039 92.49 13,843

11 174,059,508.33 26,051,487 94.07 14,079

12 168,700,525.68 25,249,408 91.83 13,744

2025 168,548,874.03 25,226,710 92.49 13,843
167,507,530.52 25,070,852 92.62 13,862
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2018 28 2019 10 3.00 449
2019 11 2020 10 3.00 449
2020 11 2021 10 3.00 449
2021 11 2022 10 3.00 443
2022 11 2023 10 3.00 443
2023 11 2024 10 3.00 443
7.37 7.18
2018 28 2019 10
0.00 -0.06
2019 11 2020 10
7.23 7.17
2020 11 2021 10
-15.04 -14.82
2021 11 2022 10
0.80 0.88
2022 11 2023 10
13.12 12.99
2023 11 2024 10
100x =
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2018 %mmmm 12 -5.74 -5.73
2019 20192019 12 15.40 15.22
2020 Zw%mlz 3.13 2.97
2021 20212021 12 3.36 3.29
2022 20222022 12 -14.13 -14.03
2023 20232023 12 7.60 7.40
2024 20242024 12 3.91 3.87
2025 20252025 1.42 1.40
100x

2018

2025
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1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490

2018 28 1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490
2019 10 990,748 40,043 950,705
990,748 40,043 950,705

1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411

2019 11 1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411
2020 10 997,582 189,623 1,758,664
997,582 189,623 1,758,664

2,624,512 1,097,322 4,058,601

2020 11 (2,624,512) (1,097,322) (4,058,601)
2021 10 1,347,788 542,233 2,564,219

(1,347,788) (542,233) (2,564,219)

493,542 1,233,364 3,318,779

2021 11 (493,542) (1,233,364) (3,318,779)
2022 10 294,656 623,772 2,235,103

(294,656) (623,772) (2,235,103)

103,223 516,193 2,905,809

2022 11 (103,223) (516,193) (2,905,809)
2023 10 106,154 296,647 2,044,610

(106,154) (296,647) (2,044,610)

53,016 441,819 2,517,006

2023 11 (53,016) (441,819) (2,517,006)
2024 10 41,604 226,568 1,859,646

(41,604) (226,568) (1,859,646)
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2024 10 31

2024 2023
1 11,841,436 1,772,308 11,865,118 1,775,852
(202§2°§225)é531§;f'819 9,10 441,509,278 66,080,694 448,533,022 67,131,937
312,379 46,754 366,350 54,832
453,663,093 67,899,755 460,764,490 68,962,621
347,966 52,080 851,296 127,413
13 561,271 84,005 508,336 89,553
909,237 136,086 1,449,632 216,966
452,753,856 67,763,670 459,314,858 68,745,655
280,749,932 12,019,842 286,517,745 12,883,111
12 2,517,006 376,720 2,905,809 434,912
111.54 17 98.60 15
172,003,924 25,743,877 172,797,113 25,862,544
12 1,859,646 278,333 2,044,610 306,017
92.49 14 84.51 13

2025
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2024 10 31

2024 2023
14 48,641,748 7,280,210 (4,554, 865) (681,727)
13,834,574 2,070,621 15,753,126 2,357,770
62,476,322 9,350,831 11,198,261 1,676,044
13,15 3,237,458 484,550 3,545,663 530,679
13,15 924,982 138,442 1,013,087 151,629
13,15 554,989 83,065 607,816 90,972
13,15 323,747 48,455 353,767 52,948
13,15 20,975 3,139 23,297 3,487
30,049 4,497 27,079 4,053
57,051 8,539 93,260 13,958
5,149,251 770,688 5,663,969 847,726
57,327,071 8,580,143 5,534,292 828,317
16 (5,760,683) (862,201) (6,360, 634) (951,996)
(5.760,683) (862,201) (6.,360,634) (951,996)
51,566,388 7,717,941 (826, 342) (123,679)
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(67,718,040)
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68,745,655

1,435,433
(10,135, 359)

7,717,941
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2023
518,549,887 77,611,362
19,796,263 2,962,907

(78,204,950)  (11,704,935)

(826,342) (123,679)

452,753,856

67,763,670

459,314,858 68,745,655
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2024 2023
51,566,388 7,717,941 (826,342) (123,679)
69,500,002 10,402,065 70,000,001 10,476,900
(54,789,221) (8,200,303) (1,528,240) (228,732)
6,147,537 920,102 6,083,105 910,458
(13,834,574) (2,070,621) (15,753,126) (2,357,770)
- - 3,000,000 449,010
(37,065) (5.,548) (20,136) (3,014)
58,553,067 8,763,638 60,955,262 9,123,174
9,644,621 1,443,510 19,863,180 2,972,922

(68,221,370)

(10,210, 692)

(79,463,562)

(11,893,311)

(58,576,749) (8,767,182) (59,600,382) (8,920,389)

(23,682) (3.544) 1,354,880 202,785
11,865,118 1,775,852 10,510,238 1,573,067
11,841,436 1,772,308 11,865,118 1,775,852
13,834,574 2,070,621 15,753,126 2,357,770
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2024 10 31
2024 10 31 2023 10 31
2024 2024 2023 2023
3,132,505,675 441,509,278  2,818,614,838 448,533,022
2024 10 31 2023 10 31
FVTPL
2024
USD usD USD usD
- 11,841,436 - 11,841,436
FVTPL
441,509,278 - - 441,509,278
- 312,379 - 312,379
441,509,278 12,153,815 - 453,663,093
- - 347,966 347,966
- - 561,271 561,271
- - 452,753,856 452,753,856
- - 453,663,093 453,663,093
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2024 10 31
FVTPL
2023
USD (I USD usD
- 11,865,118 - 11,865,118
FVTPL
448,533,022 - - 448,533,022
- 366,350 - 366,350
448,533,022 12,231,468 - 460,764,490
- - 851,296 851,296
- - 598,336 598,336
- - 459,314,858 459,314,858
- - 460,764,490 460,764,490
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2024
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- 441,509,278 - 441,509,278
2023
- 448,533,022 - 448,533,022

- 448,533,022 - 448,533,022
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2024 10 31
10
2024 10 31 2023 10 31
2024
11,841,436 11,841,436
312,379 312,379
12,153,815 12,153,815
347,966 347,966
561,271 561,271
909,237 909,237
2023
11,865,118 11,865,118
366,350 366,350
12,231,468 12,231,468
851,296 851,296
598,336 598,336
1,449,632 1,449,632
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10

11

12

2024 10 31

12

2024 2023
11,841,436 11,865,118
11,841,436 11,865,118

2024 2023

2,905,809 3,318,779

53,016 103,223

(441,819) (516,193)
2,517,006 2,905,809
2,044,610 2,235,103
41,604 106,154
(226,568) (296,647)
1,859,646 2,044,610
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2024 10 31

2024 10 31 2023 10 31

2024 2023
271,041 275,733
77,471 78,818
46,483 47,291
27,115 27,583
3,663 4,011
27,206 25,097
108,292 139,803
561,271 598,336

0.7

0.2

0.12
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2024 10 31

0.55
2024 2023
(6,147,473) (6,083,105)
54,789,221 1,528,240

48,641,748 (4,554, 865)
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2024 10 31
16
0.005
2024 10 31 5,760,683 2023 6,360,634
17
2024 10 31 14,956,220
2,586,066 2025

1,836,966

2025
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 October 2024
2024 2023

Notes USD USD
Assets
Cash 11 11,841,436 11,865,118
Investment in Selected Fund (Cost: 2024:
UsD463,876,819, 2023: USD525,689,783) 9,10 441,509,278 448,533,022
Subscriptions receivable 312,379 366,350
Total Assets 453,663,093 460,764,490
Liabilities
Repurchases payable 347,966 851,296
Other payables 13 561,271 598,336
Total Liabilities 909,237 1,449,632
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units 452,753,856 459,314,858
Representing:
Capital Growth Type Units
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units Usb280,749,932  USD286,517,745
Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 2,517,006 2,905,809
Net asset value (““NAV”~) per redeemable participating
unit USD111.54 USD98. 60
Monthly Distribution Type Units
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units uUsb172,003,924  USD172,797,113
Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 1,859,646 2,044,610
NAV per redeemable participating unit USD92.49 USD84.51

Approved on behal f of the Trustee on 4 March 2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister"s Collection

A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) I11

(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 October 2024

2024 2023

Notes USD USD
Net income from Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Net gain/(loss) on investments 14 48,641,748 (4,554,865)
Dividend income 13,834,574 15,753,126
Net investment income 62,476,322 11,198,261
Distribution fees 13,15 3,237,458 3,545,663
Investment Manager fees 13,15 924,982 1,013,087
Fee Agent fees 13,15 554,989 607,816
Administration fees 13,15 323,747 353,767
Custody fees 13,15 20,975 23,297
Audit fees 30,049 27,079
Other fees and expenses 57,051 93,260
Total operating expenses 5,149,251 5,663,969
Operating profit 57,327,071 5,534,292
Finance Costs
Distributions to the holder of redeemable participating
units 16 (5,760,683) (6,360,634)
Total Finance Costs (5,760,683) (6,360,634)
Change in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable participating units 51,566,388 (826,342)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to the Holder of Redeemable Participating

Units
For the year ended 31 October 2024

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units at start of year

Issue of redeemable participating units

Repurchase of redeemable participating units

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable participating units

2024
usD

459,314,858

9,590,650

(67,718,040)

51,566,388

2023
usD

518,549,887

19,796,263

(78,204,950)

(826,342)

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units at end of year

452,753,856

459,314,858

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) I11

(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 October 2024

Operating activities

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable participating units

Sale of investment in Selected Fund

Adjustment for items not involving cash

Movement in unrealised gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Net realised loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Dividend income*

Net change in non-cash operating balances
Decrease in receivable from Selected Fund
Decrease in other payables

Net cash provided by operating activities
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating units

Payments for repurchase of redeemable participating
units

Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Supplementary information:
Dividends re-invested*

2024
usD

51,566,388

69,500,002

(54,789,221)

6,147,537
(13,834,574)

2023
uSsD

(826,342)

70,000,001

(1,528,240)

6,083,105
(15,753,126)

- 3,000,000

(37,065) (20,136)
58,553,067 60,955,262
9,644,621 19,863,180

(68,221,370)

(79,463,562)

(58,576,749)

(59,600,382)

(23,682) 1,354,880
11,865,118 10,510,238
11,841,436 11,865,118
13,834,574 15,753,126

*Dividend income from the Selected Fund is not received as cash but is instead reinvested in the same

class of units in the Selected Fund.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Meister s Collection (For Qualified Institutional Investors only) (the ““Series Trust®”) has
been created and established pursuant to the Master Trust Deed for UBS Universal Trust (Cayman)
111 (formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11) (the ““Master Trust””) dated 2 December
2013 and a Supplemental Trust Deed dated 3 August 2018 (the ““Supplement Trust Deed”” and
together with the Master Trust Deed, the ““Trust Deed””). The Master Trust is an exempted unit
trust registered under Section 47 of the Trust Act of the Cayman Islands on 2 December 2013 and
registered under the Mutual Funds Act of the Cayman Islands on 22 January 2014.

The Series Trust commenced trading on 28 September 2018 issuing Capital Growth Type Units and
Monthly Distribution Type Units respectively.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to provide investors with the option of receiving
either current income or capital appreciation by indirectly investing under normal market
conditions mainly in income-producing debt and equity securities including, but not limited to,
corporate bonds, convertible bonds, common stocks and preferred stocks. It is expected that the
Series Trust will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing substantially all of the
assets of the Series Trust into the USD Distribution Class Units of Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income
Fund (the ““Selected Fund”?). The Selected Fund is a series trust of Global Multi Strategy, an
umbrella unit trust established under the laws of the Cayman Islands (the ““Umbrella Trust””). At
31 October 2024, the Series Trust had a 14.09% (2023: 15.91%) holding in the Selected Fund.

The Series Trust may also hold USD cash and money market securities (including but not limited to
commercial paper, certificates of deposit and government bills).

Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company, Limited (the ““Investment Manager””) shall have day-
to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring responsibility over the portion of the
Series Trust s portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash and money market securities
(the ““Subadvised Portfolio””).
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The Subadvised Portfolio may generate a certain amount of income each month. It is intended that
the portion of such income that is attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Units will be
distributed to the holder of such class of Units on each distribution date, as further described
in Note 16.

The investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek to provide a high level of income and
attractive risk-adjusted returns by investing in corporate securities across the capital
structure based on the investment manager of the Selected Fund, Nuveen Asset Management, LLC (the
““SF Investment Manager””), assessment of relative value and risk. The base currency of the
Selected Fund is USD.

In order to pursue its investment objective, the SF Investment Manager employs a rigorous
research-focused investment process that seeks to identify undervalued companies with positive
risk/reward characteristics in selecting investments for the Selected Fund.

The SF Investment Manager s approach to investing is based upon a bottom-up, fundamental
approach. The team conducts independent research focused on understanding individual companies as
businesses rather than viewing them simply as stocks. Part of the methodology includes rigorous
financial statement evaluation, focusing on balance sheet and cash flow statement analysis above
solely relying upon the income statement, a process they believe allows for a true understating
of a company s economic profitability, cash flow and return on capital.

The SF Investment Manager ”s investment process focuses on the attractiveness of a particular
security within a company s capital structure and seeks to invest in securities that it feels
possess the appropriate balance between risk and reward and that represent good value when
compared to other similar securities. The SF Investment Manager may choose to sell securities or
reduce its exposure to a security, including through the use of the financial derivative
instruments described below, if it feels that a company no longer possesses favorable risk/reward
characteristics, attractive valuations or catalysts, if it identifies better alternatives within
a company s capital structure, or if a company suspends or is projected to suspend its dividend
or interest payments.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The SF Investment Manager will invest for the account of the Selected Fund in a diversified
portfolio of investments including, but not limited to, debt and equity securities of US or non-
US companies. The debt securities in which the SF Investment Manager invests, for the account of
the Selected Fund, may invest include, but are not limited to, corporate bonds, mortgage-backed
securities, taxable municipal securities, and US Government and agency debt securities. Preferred
securities are securities issued by corporate issuers that generally pay fixed or adjustable rate
distributions to investors and have preference over common shares in the payment of distributions
and the liquidation of a company ™ s assets, but are junior to most other forms of a company ”s
debt, including both senior and subordinated debt.

The SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, may invest without limit in
preferred securities and debt securities that are rated lower than investment grade at the time
of purchase or in unrated securities of comparable quality. These securities may also be referred
to as sub-investment grade securities and generally provide high income in an effort to
compensate investors for their higher risk of default, which is the failure to make required
interest or principal payments. Accordingly, the NAV of the Selected Fund may have a relatively
high level of volatility.

There is no limitation on the average maturity or average effective duration of the securities
held by the Selected Fund.

Normally, the SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, will invest
substantially all of the Selected Fund ”s assets to meet its investment objective. To the extent
that the Selected Fund ”s assets are not fully invested in accordance with its investment
objective, the SF Investment Manager s investment decisions may be made on the basis of short-
term market considerations in which case the SF Investment Manager, for the account of the
Selected Fund, may engage in frequent trading of portfolio securities. For temporary defensive
purposes, including during periods of high cash inflows and outflows, the SF Investment Manager
may temporarily deviate from the investment policies and restrictions of the Selected Fund.
During such periods, the Selected Fund may not achieve its investment objective.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

On 6 December 2021, Corporation Services Company (““CSC>”) announced that a conditional agreement
had been reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of

Intertrust Group of which the Trustee is a wholly owned subsidiary. In November 2022, CSC closed

on its acquisition of Intertrust Group.

On 19 March 2023, UBS Group AG (““UBS””) agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG (““Credit
Suisse””) following intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National
Bank and the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

On 12 June 2023, UBS announced the legal closing of the acquisition of Credit Suisse by way of a
statutory merger. As a result of the closing, Credit Suisse ceased to exist and Credit Suisse
became a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS. One of the key steps of the integration is the
legal merger of UBS and Credit Suisse (the ““Parent Bank Merger””). The Parent Bank Merger is a
statutory merger by absorption under Swiss law, whereby UBS will be the surviving entity and
Credit Suisse will cease to exist upon completion of the merger. At this point in time, in
principle, all assets, liabilities and contracts of Credit Suisse and its branches will
automatically transfer to UBS (and its branches as the case may be) by operation of law (in other
words by ““universal succession””). As a result, UBS will automatically take over all the rights
and responsibilities from Credit Suisse. The Parent Bank Merger was completed with effect from 31
May 2024.

On 28 February 2024, the Trustee resolved to change the name of the Trust from Credit Suisse
Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il1l1. The Master Trust Deed was

revised through a Deed of Amendment on 1 March 2024.

Following a Special resolution dated 1 February 2024, the Manager changed its name and is now
incorporated under the name of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (““IFRS””) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (““1ASB””), and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the
1ASB.

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (““USD””) and not the local
currency of the Cayman Islands. The units of the Series Trust are issued and redeemed in Japanese
Yen (““JPY”??) but the Series Trust s operations are primarily conducted in USD.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12, and IAS 27)
(2012) (the ““amendments””). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of
an investment entity.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trustee to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised. Judgements made by the Trustee in the application of IFRS that have a
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in Notes 9 and 10.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
material items:

Items Measurement basis

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Fair value
loss (““FVTPL”?)

Investment in Selected Fund is included in this category.

4. CHANGES IN MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS
Accounting Standard Practice Statement 2) from 1 November 2023. Although the amendments did not
result in any changes to the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy
information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ““material”” rather than ““significant”” accounting
policies. The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of
accounting policies, assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy
information that users need to understand other information in the financial statements.

5. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED
A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2024 and
earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or

amended standards in preparing these financial statements.

Of those standards that are not yet effective, none is expected to have a material impact on the
Series Trust ™ s financial statements in the period of initial application.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

6. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year
beginning 1 November 2023

A number of amendments to IFRS are effective for the current financial year, but they do not have
a material effect on the Series Trust ”s financial statements.

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust and consistently applied to all
periods presented in these financial statements are as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the
trade date, which is the date on which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the date on which they are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item
not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:
e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and
e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (““SPP1”7).

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Business model assessment

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is

held, the Series Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is

managed, including:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust~s
management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for

derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust~”s

continuing recognition of the assets.

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and subscriptions receivable. These
financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.

Other business model: this includes investment in Selected Fund. These financial assets
are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales
taking place.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, ““principal”” is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ““Interest”” is defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— leverage features;

— prepayment and extension features;

— terms that limit the Series Trust”s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features); and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).

For a reconciliation of line items in the Statement of Financial Position to the categories of
financial instruments, as defined by IFRS 9, see Note 8.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Series
Trust were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected
financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following
the change in the business model.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in
profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investment in Selected Fund is included in this category.

The fair value of the investment in the Selected Fund is based on the unaudited NAV per unit
obtained from the Selected Fund ”s administrators, which has been assessed as the most
representative measure of fair value as determined by the Investment Manager. Realised and
unrealised gains or losses on the investment in the Selected Fund are included in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and subscriptions receivable are included in this category.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses (continued)

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

As at the years ended 31 October 2024 and 2023, there were no financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include repurchases payable and other payables.

(iii) Fair value measurement

““Fair value”” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access
at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the
asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information
on an ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a mid-
price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

IT there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Series Trust uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would
take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Series Trust recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(iv) Amortised cost measurement

The ““amortised cost”” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any loss allowance.

(v) Impairment
The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (““ECLs””) on financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

The Series Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

e financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
e other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Series Trust considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Series Trust~s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Series Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 30 days past due.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)
The Series Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when:

e the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Series Trust in full,
without recourse by the Series Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or

e the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of
the counterparty is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ““investment grade””.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a Financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Series Trust is exposed to
credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Series Trust in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Series Trust expects to
receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
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A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(v) Impairment (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ““credit-impaired”” when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or
e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the Statement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Series Trust has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

(vi) Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.
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A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(vi) Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Series Trust may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
Statement of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfers of assets
with retention of all or substantially all of the risks and rewards include sale and repurchase
transactions.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

(vii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position when and only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netting
agreements and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the Statement of
Financial Position. As at 31 October 2024 and 2023, the Series Trust does not hold any financial
assets or liabilities subject to master netting arrangements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(vii) Offsetting (continued)

Cash

Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited as Trustee have appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
(London Branch) as its custodian (the ““Custodian””). The Custodian has, in turn, appointed Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (““BBH””) as their sub-custodian (the ““Sub-Custodian®”). Cash is
ultimately held at BBH as the Series Trust ™s banker. Cash comprises of cash held with maturities
of 3 months or less with BBH.

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL

Dividend income is recorded gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes suffered on an ex-
dividend date basis. Dividend income from the Selected Fund is not received as cash but is
instead reinvested in the same class of units in the Selected Fund.

The realised loss from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the
carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting period, or the
transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and the consideration
received on disposal. Realised gains or losses on sale of investments are calculated using the
FIFO method. The unrealised gain represents the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased
in the current reporting period, and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

Foreign exchange transactions

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of securities, issue and
redemption of redeemable participating units and income and expense items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into USD amounts on the respective dates of such transactions.

Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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(continued)

7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other Cayman Islands taxes payable by the Master Trust. The Master Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands that it will be exempt from such
taxes for a period of fifty years from 2 December 2013 should they be enacted. As a result, no
provision for taxes has been made in the financial statements. The Series Trust may be subject to
foreign withholding taxes on certain interest, dividends and capital gains.

Foreign currencies

Items which are included in the Series Trust”s financial statements, are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the ““functional currency’”),
which s USD. Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of investments, issue
and repurchase of redeemable participating units and income and expense items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts on the respective dates of such transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD at the
exchange rates ruling at the year end date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies which are stated at fair value, are translated into USD, at the date the fair
value was determined. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from translation, if any,
are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Redeemable Participating Units

The Redeemable Participating Units sold by the Series Trust are puttable instruments and are
classified as financial liabilities as they do not meet the conditions for equity classification
under the amendments to IAS 32, as there were different classes of Units with different features
in issue throughout the year (Note 12). The NAV per Unit is calculated by dividing the total Net
Assets of the Series Trust attributable to each Unit class by the number of Units in issue in
each respective class. All Units are issued and redeemed at this price.
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7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest in another entity
Interest in another entity is defined for the purpose of IFRS 12 as contractual or non-

contractual involvement that exposes an entity to variability of returns from the performance of
the other entity. It can be evidenced by holding of equity or debt instruments, but also
liquidity support, credit enhancement and guarantees.

The Series Trust has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment fund in which it invests,
but that it does not consolidate, meets the definition of a structured entity because:

the voting rights in the Selected Fund are not dominant rights in deciding who controls
them because the rights relate to administrative tasks only;

the Selected Fund s activities are restricted by its offering documents and applicable
appendix; and

the Selected Fund has narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment

opportunities to investors.

The table below describes the type of structured entity that the Series Trust does not
consolidate but in which it holds an interest:

Type of Nature and purpose Interest held by the

structured entity Series Trust

Investment Fund To provide a high level of income and Investments in units
attractive risk-adjusted return by investing issued by the Selected
in corporate securities across the capital Fund

structure based on the Manager s assessment
of relative value and risk.
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7. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest in another entity (continued)

The table below sets out interests held by the Series Trust in unconsolidated structured
entities. The maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amounts of the financial assets held at 31
October 2024 and 2023.

Total net Carrying Total net Carrying
assets amount at assets amount at
(unaudited) FVTPL (unaudited) FVTPL
2024 2024 2023 2023
usD usD usD usD
Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income
Fund 3,132,505,675 441,509,278 2,818,614,838 448,533,022

During the years ended 31 October 2024 and 2023, the Series Trust did not provide additional
financial support to unconsolidated structured entities and has no current obligation to or
intention of providing other financial or other support.
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CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2024

Cash
Financial
FVTPL
Subscriptions

assets

receivable

Repurchases payable
Other payables

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 October 2024
(continued)

Net assets attributable

to the holder

redeemable participating

units

Financial
Financial liabilities
assets at at
Mandatorily amortised amortised
at FVTPL cost cost Total
UsD usD UsD usD
- 11,841,436 - 11,841,436
at
441,509,278 - - 441,509,278
- 312,379 - 312,379
441,509,278 12,153,815 - 453,663,093
- - 347,966 347,966
- - 561,271 561,271
of
- - 452,753,856 42,753,856

453,663,093

453,663,093
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CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

2023

Cash
Financial
FVTPL
Subscriptions

assets

receivable

Repurchases payable
Other payables

Financial
Financial liabilities
assets at at
Mandatorily amortised amortised
at FVTPL cost cost Total
UsD usD UsD usD
- 11,865,118 - 11,865,118
at
448,533,022 - - 448,533,022
- 366,350 - 366,350
448,533,022 12,231,468 - 460,764,490
- - 851,296 851,296
- - 598,336 598,336

Net assets attributable

to the holder

of

redeemable participating

units

459,314,858

459,314,858

460,764,490

460,764,490
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9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value analysed between those whose

fair value is based on:

e level 1: Quoted price (Unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;

e level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using:
qguoted prices in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques for which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data; and

e level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category
includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on
observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument®s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are
required to reflect differences between the instruments. The Series Trust did not hold any
instruments in this category.

2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usb usb usb usb
Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment in Selected
Fund - 441,509,278 - 441,509,278
- 441,509,278 - 441,509,278
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(continued)

9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uUsD usD uUsb usD
Financial assets at FVTPL

Investment in Selected
Fund

448,533,022

448,533,022

- 448,533,022 - 448,533,022

There were no transfers across the three levels during the years ended 31 October 2024 and 2023.

Financial instruments not measured at FVTPL

The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL include:

Cash, subscriptions receivable, repurchases payable and other payables. These are short-term
financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because
of their short-term nature.

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The main risks arising from the Series Trust s financial instruments can be summarised as
follows:

Market Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial investments held. It
represents the potential loss the Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in
the face of price movements. Market risk comprises three types of risk: price risk, currency risk
and interest rate risk.

In order to pursue the Series Trust s investment objective, the Manager has committed to

employing a rigorous research-focused investment process that seeks to identify undervalued
companies with positive risk/reward characteristics.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

The Series Trust will invest, together with other investors, all, or substantially all of its
assets through a ““master-feeder”” structure in the Selected Fund. A ““master-feeder”” structure,
in particular the existence of multiple investment vehicles investing in the same portfolio,
presents certain unique risks to investors. Smaller investment vehicles investing in the Selected
Fund may be materially affected by the actions of larger investment vehicles investing in the
Selected Fund. For example, if a larger investment vehicle withdraws from the Selected Fund, the
remaining funds may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower
returns. Substantial withdrawals of capital by investors in the Selected Fund, including the
Series Trust and any other investors, over a short time period could necessitate the liquidation
of investment positions at a time and in a manner which does not provide the most economic
advantage to the Selected Fund and which therefore could adversely affect the NAV of the Selected
Fund and hence the NAV of the Series Trust.

The Investment Manager will invest substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust in the
Selected Fund. The Series Trust will be required to comply with the terms of the Selected Fund s
offering memoranda and constitutive documents, which may place limits on subscriptions and
repurchases, and additionally the liquidation of the Selected Fund would lead to the compulsory
repurchase of any Units held for the account of the Series Trust which may, in some cases, lead
to compulsory repurchases of Units. Accordingly, the performance of the Series Trust may not
absolutely reflect the performance of the Selected Fund.

The price of the units of the Selected Fund may fall as well as rise. There can be no assurance
that the Selected Fund will achieve its investment objective or that an investor will recover the
full amount invested in the Selected Fund. Restrictions on investments in certain jurisdictions
may limit the liquidity of the Selected Fund ”s investments. The capital return and income of the
Selected Fund is based on the capital appreciation and income on the investments it holds, less
expenses incurred. Therefore, the Selected Fund ”s return may be expected to fluctuate in
response to changes in such capital appreciation or income. An investment in the Selected Fund
should be viewed by an investor as a medium to long term investment.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

The Selected Fund is subject to market risk. Market risk is the risk that a particular Unit, a
fund, an industry, or securities in general may fall in value. The value of investments in the
Selected Fund will go up and down with the prices of securities in which the Selected Fund
invest. The prices of securities change in response to many factors, including the historical and
prospective earnings of the issuer, the value of its assets, management decisions, demand for an
issuer s products or services, production costs, general economic conditions, interest rates,
currency exchange rates, investor perceptions, geopolitical factors and market liquidity.

Normally, the Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, will invest substantially all of its
assets to meet its investment objective. To the extent that the Selected Fund ™ s assets are not
fully invested in accordance with the investment objective, the Manager ”s investment decisions
may be made on the basis of short-term market considerations in which case the Manager, for the
account of the Selected Fund, may engage in frequent trading of portfolio securities.

The following table approximates the concentration of the investment assets, excluding
derivatives, held by the Selected Fund:
% of Net Assets of
the
Selected Fund

Equities/Preferred securities 14.4
Corporate bonds 61.0
Variable rate bonds 20.0

For the Selected Fund, the investments are primarily concentrated in the United States of
America in diverse industries.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that value of the related instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in the market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk),
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, or its issuer. The Series Trust
is susceptible to price risk that occurs at the Selected Fund, which may include substantial
risks as a result of trading by the Selected Fund of equity securities, derivative instruments,
options and futures, including securities denominated in different currencies while executing
their investment strategy. As the Selected Fund ”s investments in securities, futures contracts
and swap are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect the Net Assets
attributable to the Series Trust.

As at 31 October 2024, if the price of the Investment in Selected Fund had increased by 5% with
all other variables held constant, there would have been an increase in Net Assets of
Usb22,075,464 (2023: USD22,426,651). A decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant,
would result in an equal but opposite effect on Net Assets to the figure shown above.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that as certain assets of the Series Trust may be invested in
securities and other investments denominated in foreign currencies, the value of such assets may
be affected favourably or unfavourably by fluctuations in currency rates. Although the Series
Trust s investments are USD denominated, the Series Trust indirectly bears currency risk on the
investment held in the Selected Fund. The Investment Manager will monitor the portfolio of the
Selected Fund.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)
Currency Risk (continued)
The class of units held by the Series Trust in the Selected Fund is USD denominated. This

presents certain risks relating to currency conversion if an investor s financial activities are
denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (including JPY) (the ““Investor s
Currency””) other than USD. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change
(including changes due to devaluation of USD or revaluation of the Investor ”s Currency) and the
risk that authorities with jurisdiction over USD or the Investor s Currency, as the case may be,
may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the value of the Investor s Currency
against USD would decrease (a) the Investor ”s Currency equivalent value of the NAV of the
Selected Fund and NAV of the Selected Fund per unit and (b) the Investor s Currency equivalent
value of the distributions payable (if any).

Some of the assets of the Selected Fund may be invested in other currencies and any income
received by the Selected Fund from these investments will be received in those currencies, some
of which may fall in value against the functional currency of the Selected Fund. In addition, the
Selected Fund may invest directly in currency deposits or forward contracts or equivalent
derivatives, in some cases for hedging purposes.

All the financial assets of the Series Trust, are denominated in USD with the effect that the
Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income will not be significantly

affected by currency movements and as a result, a sensitivity analysis has not been performed.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust might suffer due to
adverse movements in relevant interest rates. Except for cash, which is subject to a floating
interest rate and matures in less than 3 months, the majority of the Series Trust”s other
financial assets and financial liabilities are non-interest bearing. As a result, the Series
Trust is subject to limited exposure to fair value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates. However, the Series Trust is exposed to higher levels
of interest rate risk through its investment in the Selected Fund.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)
Interest Rate Risk (continued)

Interest rate risk at the Selected Fund level is the risk that the value of the Selected Fund”s
portfolio may decline during periods of rising interest rates. When interest rates change, the
values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change than the values
of shorter-duration debt securities. The Selected Fund may be subject to a greater risk of rising
interest rates than would have been the case in past periods due to the recent environment of
near historically low rates, including negative interest rates, and the effect of potential
government fiscal policy initiatives and resulting market reaction to those initiatives. Due to
the Selected Fund s investment strategy, assets held by the Selected Fund would see fluctuation
based on changes to the market interest rates.

As at 31 October 2024 and 2023, all the Series Trust”s assets except for cash and liabilities
were non-interest bearing.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Series Trust may not be able to settle or meet its
obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Series Trust is exposed to daily cash
repurchases of Redeemable Participating Units, which can be redeemed at the holder s option
based on the Series Trust”s NAV per Redeemable Participating Unit at the time of the repurchase.
There are no repurchase restrictions on units of the Series Trust, other than in the limited
circumstances specified in the documentation. The Manager may borrow monies, for the account of
the Series Trust, provided that it will not result in an aggregate outstanding amount of
borrowing in excess of 10% of the NAV.

Redeemable Participating Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of the unitholder of

the Series Trust as at each business day and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from
time to time determine (the ““Repurchase Day”~”).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Per the policies of the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is able to redeem their investment in the

Selected Fund on any Repurchase Day (as defined above). As the repurchase policies of both the

Series Trust and Selected Fund are aligned, there is minimal impact on the Series Trust”s

liquidity risk. The Selected Fund ™ s securities are considered by the SF Investment Manager to be

readily liquid. The Selected Fund s liquidity risk is managed on a daily basis by the SF

Investment Manager in accordance with policies and procedures in place.

The table below analyses the Series Trust”s financial assets and liabilities by contractual
maturity as at 31 October 2024 and 2023:

2024
Assets
Cash

Subscriptions receivable

Total Financial Assets

Liabilities
Repurchases payable
Other payables

Total Financial Liabilities

Less than
1 month Total
usD usb
11,841,436 11,841,436
312,379 312,379
12,153,815 12,153,815
347,966 347,966
561,271 561,271
909, 237 909, 237
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

2023 Less than

1 month Total
Assets USD usD
Cash 11,865,118 11,865,118
Subscriptions receivable 366,350 366,350
Total Financial Assets 12,231,468 12,231,468
Liabilities
Repurchases payable 851,296 851,296
Other payables 598,336 598,336
Total Financial Liabilities 1,449,632 1,449,632
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Series Trust. The Series Trust is
exposed to the credit risk of the Selected Fund.

Both the cash and securities are ultimately held at the Sub-Custodian, with cash being held at
the Sub-Custodian as banker. All of the cash of the Series Trust are held by the Sub-Custodian at
year end. The Sub-Custodian has a S&P Global credit rating of A+ (2023: A+). The Custodian (which
is responsible for both the Series Trust and Selected Fund) has a S&P Global credit rating of A
(2023: A). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Sub-Custodian may cause the Series Trust s rights
with respect to its investments in debt securities held by the bank to be delayed or limited.

The Portfolio Managers of the SF Investment Manager continuously monitor the credit
worthiness/risk of the Selected Fund s investments.

The assets held for the account of the Selected Fund are subject to risks resulting from changes
in the creditworthiness of the underlying investments of the Selected Fund or the issuer of such
investments. This could lead to greater volatility in the prices of the security and in units of
the Selected Fund. For example, an issuer of a bond might not be able to meet its obligation to
make interest and principal payments, or bond investors as a whole may downgrade their view of
the issuer resulting in a deterioration of the price of the issuer ”s debt. In addition, credit
opinions from credit rating agencies may weigh on the credit spreads of the investments made for
the account of the Selected Fund.

Other Risks

On 24 February 2022, Russia launched a military invasion into Ukraine. Russia™s invasion of
Ukraine carries significant risks for a world economy. The ultimate impact on the Series Trust of
the consequential geo-political instability, financial market volatility, inflation and
imposition of sanctions on Russia, and of an environment of rising interest rates are not
possible to forecast at this time.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Amounts arising from ECL

Impairment on cash, interest, dividends and other receivables has been measured on a 12-month
expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series Trust
considers that these exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
counterparties.

11. CASH
2024 2023
usD usD
Cash 11,841,436 11,865,118
11,841,436 11,865,118

12. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS

The Series Trust has two classes of units: Capital Growth Type Units and Monthly Distribution
Type Units.

2024 2023
Capital Growth Type Units
Number of units outstanding as at start of year 2,905,809 3,318,779
Number of units issued 53,016 103,223
Number of units redeemed (441,819) (516,193)

Number of units outstanding as at end of year 2,517,006 2,905,809
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12. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS (continued)

Monthly Distribution Type Units

Number of units outstanding as at start of year 2,044,610 2,235,103
Number of units issued 41,604 106,154
Number of units redeemed (226,568) (296,647)
Number of units outstanding as at end of year 1,859,646 2,044,610

From and including the initial closing day, units of each class of units will be available for
subscription by investors at a price equal to the NAV per Unit of the applicable class of units
on each dealing day, subject to the minimum subscription. The NAV per Unit for each class of
Units will be calculated as at the relevant dealing day (or if that dealing day is not also a
valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription amount is 1 unit
and thereafter subscriptions may be made in 1 unit increments. The aggregate subscription amounts
will be rounded naturally to the nearest two decimal places with 0.005 being rounded up. There
will be no subscription fee payable.

Investors may subscribe for units of a class of units during the initial offer period by sending
a completed application form to the Administrator by no later than 5.00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the
last day of the initial offer period or by such other times and/or days as the Manager may in its
sole discretion determine.

The subscription monies must be remitted in full by telegraphic transfer from an account in the
name of the applicant for the account of the Series Trust for a cash settlement date on or before
the date falling one business day after the initial closing day. Payment must be made in USD. No
third party payments will be accepted. Incomplete application forms may, in the discretion of the
Manager, be held over to the first dealing day following receipt of a completed application form
and units will then be issued at the relevant NAV per Unit on such dealing day.
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12. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS (continued)

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on each dealing day which is also a
day on which no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager
may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust in respect of Units of a class of
Units for which subscription proceeds have been received by the Administrator. The repurchase
notice once served is irrevocable, unless the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
determines otherwise. The repurchase price per unit of a class of units will be calculated as the
NAV per unit of such class of units as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day
is not also a valuation day then on the immediately preceding valuation day). The Manager may, in
its sole discretion, hold over any repurchase notice received after the repurchase notice
deadline until the next following Repurchase Day and repurchase the relevant units at the
relevant repurchase price applicable to such class of units on that Repurchase Day.

13. FEES AND EXPENSES

The Series Trust”s fees payable as at 31 October 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023

usb usb

Distribution fees 271,041 275,733
Investment Manager fees 77,471 78,818
Fee Agent fees 46,483 47,291
Administration fees 27,115 27,583
Custody fees 3,663 4,011
Audit fees 27,206 25,097
Other fees and expenses 108,292 139,803

561,271 598,336
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

13. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Distribution Fees
The Distributor receives out of the Series Trust, a fee on a monthly basis at the rate of 0.7%
per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in
arrears at the rate of 0.2% per annum of the NAV.

Fee Agent Fees
The Fee Agent receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in arrears
at the rate of 0.12% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Fee Agent is responsible for payment of the Trustee and Manager fees. The Fee Agent will also
cover all costs and expenses pertaining to the Trustee and Manager fees including sundry
expenses.

The Trustee receives a fixed annual fee of USD10,000 per annum payable annually in advance out of
the Fee Agent Fees. The Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the Fee Agent Fees for

all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

The Manager receives out of the Fee Agent Fees a management fee of USD5,000 per annum payable
monthly in arrears.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

13. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Administration Fees

The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a monthly fee of 0.07% per
annum of the NAV on the first USD500 million, 0.06% per annum of the NAV on the next USD500
million and 0.05% per annum of the NAV after USD1,000 million.

All of the Administrator ”s fees are subject to additions in relation to value added tax (if
any). In addition, the Trustee pays, out of the assets of the Series Trust, the Administrator s
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for photocopying, fax, telephone, printing, courier, postage
and other communications charges, as well as for any banking costs and the fees or charges of any
government or official department, body or organisation, and any other similar expenses, costs,
fees or charges paid by the Administrator on behalf of the Series Trust in connection with the
performance of its services for the Series Trust.

Custody Fees
The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable monthly in arrears at
the rate of 0.025% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Custodian also receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, any other fees agreed between
the relevant parties and is reimbursed out of the assets of the Series Trust for all out-of-
pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

Fees of the Selected Fund

As the Series Trust intends to invest substantially all of its assets in the Selected Fund, the
Series Trust will indirectly bear the costs and fees applicable to the Selected Fund. These fees
will reduce the NAV attributable to holders of redeemable participating units of the Selected
Fund, which will affect the value of the Investment in Selected Fund presented in the Statement
of Financial Position of the Series Trust. The total fees of the Selected Fund are approximately
0.55% of the assets under management of the Selected Fund per annum subject to change of certain
fixed fees. More details regarding the breakdown of specific fees paid within the Selected Fund
are available in the Offering Documents of the Series Trust.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

14_. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS

2024 2023
usD usD
Net gain/(loss) on investments consists of the following;
Net realised loss on financial assets at FVTPL (6,147,473) (6,083,105)
Movement in unrealised gain on financial assets at FVTPL 54,789,221 1,528,240
Net gain/(loss) on investments 48,641,748 (4,554,865)

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The
Trustee, Manager, Investment Manager, Fee Agent, Administrator, Custodian and Distributor are
deemed to be related parties of the Series Trust. The Trustee is a related party by virtue of its
power to create the Series Trust under the Deed of Establishment. The Manager is a related party
by virtue of its power to issue units under the Deed of Establishment and by virtue of common
ownership by the ultimate parent company, UBS Group AG. The Investment Manager is a related
parties by virtue of their power to make investment decisions. The Fee Agent is a related party
by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence as it provides calculation agency
services to the Series Trust. The Fee Agent information is detailed in Note 13. The Distributor,
Administrator and Custodian are related parties by virtue of their affiliation with the
Investment Manager. There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the
normal course of business. Fees incurred with related parties during the year are disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and discussed in Note 13. Amounts charged by and payable to
related parties as at 31 October 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in Note 13.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

16. DISTRIBUTIONS

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each month. The current distribution
policy of the Series Trust is:

(i in respect of the Capital Growth Type Units, to pay no distribution; and

(ii in respect of the Monthly Distribution Type Units, pay to the holder of such class of
Units a monthly distribution (a ““Monthly Distribution®”) in respect of each distribution
date paid out of the investment principal (a realisation of units in the Selected Fund)
which may also be in excess of any capital gain and attributable to the Monthly
Distribution Type Units in respect of the corresponding distribution period.

The amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each distribution date shall be determined by
the Manager in its sole discretion taking into account (1) realised and unrealised capital gains
from the Selected Fund, and (2) miscellaneous costs, among other factors, per Unit each month.

Furthermore, it is also important for investors to note that the Manager may, in circumstances
where it deems appropriate, elect that a Monthly Distribution is not payable in respect of
Monthly Distribution Type Units for a relevant month, notwithstanding its option to use the
investment principal attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Units. Circumstances where the
Manager may make such an election, include but are not limited to where it determines in its sole
discretion that application of the Series Trust s investment objectives and policies have
generated a negative performance over the previous month or have underperformed to the extent
that the Manager deems it appropriate to make such an election.

Any Monthly Distribution declared will be paid (net of any taxes payable in respect of such
distribution) on the corresponding distribution date. Distributions will be made to the person in
whose name Monthly Distribution Type Units are registered on the register of Unitholders on the
relevant distribution record day. Such distributions will be rounded naturally to two decimal
places with 0.005 being rounded up.

Distributions paid during the year ended 31 October 2024 amounted to USD5,760,683 (2023:
USD6,360,634).
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 111
(formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2024
(continued)

17. POST STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EVENTS
Subsequent to 31 October 2024, there were redemptions of USD14,956,220 from the Series Trust and
there were subscriptions of USD2,586,066 into the Series Trust. Also through to 4 March 2025, the

Series Trust paid distributions of USD1,836,966.

As of 4 March 2025, there were no other events subsequent to the year end, which require
disclosure in the financial statements.
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2024 4 17

2023 12 31
2023 2022

11 77,419,354 11,587,355 70,759,083 10,590,512
12 87,543 13,103 87,139 13,042

9,10
2,898,977,100 433,889,903 2,753,247,487 412,078,551
15,817,847 2,367,457 28,163,250 4,215,194
13 45,414,716 6,797,221 39,897,930 5,971,523
3,037,716,560 454,655,038 2,892,154,889 432,868,822

9,10
60,510 9,057 24,361 3,646
70,932 10,616 2,500,000 374,175
- - 19,237,660 2,879,301
16 1,744,173 261,050 1,657,560 248,087
1,875,615 280,723 23,419,581 3,505,209

14,18
3,035,840,945 454,374,314 2,868,735,308 429,363,614
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FX
FX

2023 12 31
2023 2022

24,248,056 3,629,207 28,563,375 4,275,080
3,769,747 564,218 1,058,640 158,447
132,039,616 19,762,369 103,658,827 15,514,617
(490, 687) (73,441) 500,737 74,945
15 113,533,645 16,992,581 (489,526,641) (73,267,452)
273,100,377 40,874,933 (355,745,062)  (53,244,363)
16,17 291,763 43,668 261,652 39,161
16,17 14,504,765 2,170,928 12,801,529 1,916,005
16,17 61 9 - -
16,17 1,167,054 174,673 1,046,606 156,646
16,17 791,330 118,438 745,503 111,579
16,17 246,887 36,952 197,692 29,589
16,17 20,766 3,108 20,422 3,057
42,549 6,368 54,644 8,179
747 112 3,848 576
19,590 2,932 (99,976) (14,963)
17,085,512 2,557,189 15,031,920 2,249,827
256,014, 865 38,317,745 (370,776,982)  (55,494,191)
19 (147,395,878) (22,060,741)  (122,983,384) (18,406,923)
(147,395,878) (22,060,741)  (122,983,384) (18,406,923)
108, 618, 987 16,257,004 (493,760,366)  (73,901,114)
(13,054,799) (1,953,912) (12,222,193) (1,829,296)
95,564,188 14,303,092 (505,982,559)  (75,730,410)

169/245



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

170/245



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 31
2023 2022
2,868,735,308 429,363,614 2,629,487,183 393,555,347
343,562,057 51,420,933 921,694,936 137,950,081
(272,020,608)  (40,713,324) (176,464,252)  (26,411,405)
95,564,188 14,303,092 (505,982,559)  (75,730,410)
3,035,840,945 454,374,314 2,868,735,308 429,363,614
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

256,014,865 38,317,745 (370,776,982) (55,494,191)
(13,054,799) (1,953,912) (12,222,193) (1,829,296)

(404) (60) (28,556) (4,274)

(145,729,613) (21,811,351) (223,700,051) (33,481,187)
(5,516,786) (825,697) (10,869,278) (1,626,805)

36,149 5,410 (1,615, 245) (241,754)
(19,237,660) (2,879,301) 18,965,817 2,838,614

86,613 12,963 (29,281) (4,382)

72,598,365 10,865,797 (600,275,769) (89,843,274)
300,078,566 44,912,759 890,179,334 133,233,141
12,345,403 1,847,736 (3,260,510) (488,001)
(272,020,608) (40,713, 324) (176,464,252) (26,411, 405)
(2,429,068) (363,559) 2,456,580 367,676

* (103,912,387) (15,552,567) (91,467,782) (13,689,983)
(65,938,094) (9,868, 955) 621,443,370 93,011,429
6,660,271 996,843 21,167,601 3,168,155
70,759,083 10,590,512 49,591,482 7,422,357
77,419,354 11,587,355 70,759,083 10,590,512
17,722,233 2,652,487 22,546,196 3,374,489
135,030,376 20,209,996 104,823,191 15,688,887
3,731,612 558,510 843,029 126,176

(747) (112) (3,848) (576)

*2023 12 31 43,483,491 2022 31,515,602

19
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2025

445,422,528 66,666,389,766
1,180,152 176,633,350
444,242,376 66,489,756,416

2,450,933

1,808,546
112.91 16,899
92.62 13,862
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2025 735,000 11,001

10
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2025

1,909,363,310

10,885,443

14 78,686,542

43,388,541,033

2,477,166,176

17 114,214,955,348
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2022 2022 12 31 2023 2023 12
31
22 38 59
328

23 103

2025 28
149.67
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2023 2022
USD USD
60,034 8,985 14,396 2,155
60,034 8,985 14,396 2,155
60,034 8,985 14,396 2,155
185,000 27,689 205,000 30,682
(25) O] 58 9
245,009 36,670 219,454 32,846
(115,081) (17,224)  (112,703) (16,868)
129,928 19,446 106,751 15,977
129,928 19,446 106,751 15,977
129,928 19,446 106,751 15,977
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2023 12 31

2023 2022

uSsD uSsD
9 2,249,019 336,611 1,984,033 296,950
10 185,864 27,818 205,864 30,812
2,434,883 364,429 2,189,897 327,762
10 451,584 67,589 336,526 50,368
451,584 67,589 336,526 50,368
11 735,000 110,007 735,000 110,007
1,248,299 186,833 1,118,371 167,387
1,983,299 296,840 1,853,371 277,394
2,434,883 364,429 2,189,897 327,762

2024 14
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2023 12 31
usb usb usb
2023
735,000 110,007 1,118,371 167,387 1,853,371 277,394
129,928 19,446 129,928 19,446
12 31 735,000 110,007 1,248,299 186,833 1,983,299 296,840
2022

735,000 110,007 1,011,620 151,409 1,746,620 261,417
106,751 15,977 106,751 15,977
12 31 735,000 110,007 1,118,371 167,387 1,853,371 277,394
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

USD USD
129,928 19,446 106,751 15,977
4 (60,034) (8,985) (14,396) (2,155)
69,894 10,461 92,355 13,823
20,000 2,993 4,999 748
20,000 2,993 4,999 748
115,058 17,221 112,595 16,852
115,058 17,221 112,595 16,852
4 60,034 8,985 14,396 2,155
264,986 39,660 224,345 33,578
264,986 39,660 224,345 33,578
9 1,984,033 296,950 1,759,688 263,373
2,249,019 336,611 1,984,033 296,950
9 2,249,019 336,611 1,984,033 296,950

2,249,019 336,611 1,984,033 296,950
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KY1-1104 309
c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
37 5.1

2023 12
2024 31
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2023 2022
60,034 14,396
60,034 14,396
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2023 2022
185,000 205,000
185,000 205,000
2023 2022
(48) (50)
(6,390) (6,478)
(108,643) (106,175)
(115,081) (112,703)

2039 10 10
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2023
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2023 2022
2,249,019 1,984,033
2,249,019 1,984,033

2023 2022
185,864 205,864
185,864 205,864

2023 2022
451,584 336,526
451,584 336,526

2023 2022

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2023 12 31

31

2022 12 31

2022 12 31
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12
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
13
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
451,584 451,584 336,526 336,526
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,186,584 1,186,584 1,071,526 1,071,526
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
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13
2023 2022
108,643 106,175
108,643 106,175
14
2023 12 31
15 2023 12 31
2023 12 31
16
2023 12
2024 31 2024
17

2024 14
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LBS Mamigeewnl (o) Lied
Financiy Ettemants for the yesr sndad 51 December 2007

Refersnce 2023 20929
Inferestincome . 00038 A0S
- from financial instromends meastrad af amorfised
cost 0,034 14,356
Total interest income 4 60,034 14,396
e T S SEEH00
"Ofher {losses)/ravanuas (23) EB
Tatal revenues 245,008 219,454
“BGeneral, adminisirativs and other operaling expensss & fiisosi (179 705)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 128,928 106,751
Profit before tax 129,928 106,731
Irrmr-*eta.texpense e
Profit after tax 129,928 106,751

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financlal statements
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L5 Managenes! (Caynan) Liaad
Fineneid Staleraenis for tha jear anded 31 Docamber 2033

Statement of Financial Position as af 31 December 2023

Rafmrenea 2023 2022
USD o Mate

BSOS et e n et e e e £es ae e
Cash and due from banks e 32,245,019 1,964,033
R > s P
Total assets 2 434,883 2,189,897
Labitites e T e
Giher fabiities 10 4%1 884 236,595
Total llabilities 451,584 336,526
Shareholders’ equily i ieseesas

Shere capital P TR fsg000 735,000
Retzined earnngs 1,248 263 1,118,371
Tatal shareholders’ equity 1,983,299 1,853,371
Total liabilities and shareholders' equily 2,434,883 2,189,897

Approved and autharised for izsus by the board of directors on 14 June 2024
o |
R TR0 2
}J{m\m ‘mrﬁ"' :}' Director .
ih-: fl E_t-ll"‘"'t' }

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalerments,

194/245



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LBS Mamsgemend [Cayman) Linated
Fimncinl Siatermands for e yer siclod 571 Decombar 2028

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

Share capital Hetanad Total
ushDr samings
K U
Balanceat tJanuary 735,000 1,118371 1863371
Frofit for the year - 129,928 120,928
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,248,299 1,983,299
2022
Baiance at TJanuary 788,000 1,011,620 1,746,620
Profit for the year 106,761 106,761
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,371

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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LES Monsgement (Snraa) Linvted
Financiai Stalemesiy for he pear ended 31 December 2025

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

ush R:ﬁw 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities

Prafit bafore tax for the peried 109,828 106,751
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash

_generated from operating activities

MHon-cash items included in net profit before tax

and other adjustments:

JRGIBRINCOME o oeeeeeveceeemsnsrgenenseragesesamsebane s anmsnnes €004 ... (14,398)
Cash generated from operating activities before

changes in operating assets and liabilities 63,804 92,365
MNet decrease in operaling asSels: et ent e et ae et st eae
Other assets 20,000 4599
Met decrease in operating assels 20,000 4,999
MNetincresss in operating lebliMes: =~ = e
Other liakiltias 115,088 112,586
MNetincrease In operating llabilities: .. 115058 112,595
Interest income received 4 60,034 14,295
Met cash generated from operating activity 264,986 224,345
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 764,986 274,345
Cash and cash equivalants at tha bmlnning of yaar 9 1,584 033 1,759,868
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,249,019 1,984,083
Cash and due from banks 9 2245 018 1,584,033
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,249,019 1,984,028

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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UES Maragsmant (Tnyman) Limed
Aodaz fa Financal Slalemaonts for o yoar eaded 51 Docomber 2025

Notes to the Financial Statements
1.  Principal activities

UBS Managemant (Cayman) Limited (the *Company®) is incorporated n the Cayman [slands wilh
[imited liability. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assets in trusts, The Company's registered office is c/o Maples Corporate Services
Limited, 2.0, Box 308, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

Key developments during the year

On 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeeding by operation of
Swiss law to all assets and Jiabiifies of Credit Suisse Group AS, and bacame the direct or indirect
shareholder of all of the former direct and indirect subsidizries of Credit Suisse Group AG (the
Transaction).

Upon the completion of the Transaction, each oulstanding, registered Cradit Suisse share converled
o the right to receive, subject to the payment of cartsin fees to the Credi Suisse depcsitory in the
case of Credit Suisse Amercan deposibery shares (ADS), the merger consideration consisting of
1/22.48 UBS Group AG shares. In agaregate, Credit Sulsse sharcholders recaived 5.1% of the
outstanding USS Group AG shares on the acquisition date, with a purchase price of USD 3.7 Gillion,

In Cecember 023, the Board of Cirectors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Cradit Suisse AG, and both entities entered inte a definitve marger agreement. The merger is
cempleted on 31 May 2024,

2. Material Accounting Palicies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been preparad in accordance with all applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards, which cofective tarm includes all applicatde individual intermational Financlzl Reporting
Standards, Intemational Accounting Standards (lASs") and Interpretations issued by International
Accounting Standards Soard (LASE). A summary of the significant accounting policies acopted by
the Company is set cut below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements
Tha measurement basis used inthe preparation of the finandial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards reguires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of palicies
and regorted smounts of assets, liabifities, income and expenses, The esiimales and asscciated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other faclors that are believed o be
reascnable under the clreumstances, the rasults of which form the basis of making the judgaments
about carrylng values of assets and llabiltias that are not readly apparent frem cther sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewsd on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimales are recognisad in the pariod in which the esfimale is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the perod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and fulure
periods.
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2. Material Accounting Policies {continued)

(k) Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)
Standards effective in the current period

The group has appied the following new and amended standards for its annual reporting period
commancing 1 January 2023

. Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8
. Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendmenis to IAS 1 and IFRS Practics Statement 2

The amandments listed above did not have any mpact on the amounts recognised in prior perdods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future perods.

{c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into known ameunts of cash and which are subject o an

insignificant risk of changes in value, having baen within thres months of maturity at acguisition.
{d) Foreign currency

The Company's functional and presentation cumency is United States Dollars (*USDC"). Foreign
currency transactions during the year are translated into USD at the foreign exchange rates rufing at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and Fabilties dencminaied in foreign cumencies are trans'ated
into LUSD at the foreign exchange rates nuing at the end of the reporting pariod. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or [oss.

Mon-monetary assets and liabilties that ara measured in terms of historical cast in a foreign currency
are translated nlo USD using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monatary assets and [abilitiss demominated in foreign currencies thal are slated at fair vaus are
translated using the foraign exchange rates rdling st the dates the fair valus was determined. Foreign
currency differances arising on retranslation are recegnised In profit or less.

(e} Other assets

Other assets are intially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated 2t amortised cost less
Expected Credit Loss ('ECL) (refer to Note 2(g)), excegt where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting weuld be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are slated at cost less impairment for bad and doubtiul
debts.

() Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be reguired to setle the obligaticn and a reliabls estimate cash be made. Where the timea
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the presenl valus of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outfiow of economic bensfits will be required, or the amount cannot

be astimated refiably, the cbligation is disclosed as a contingent [iability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic berefils is remele. Possibla cbligations, whose exdstancs wil only be confirmed
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2. Material Accounting Policies {continued)
(f) Provisions and contingent [iabilities {continued)

by the cocurrence or non-cocurrence of one or more fulure events are also disclosed as contingent
liatilities unless the probability of outflew of sconomic benafits is remota,

(g) Impairment

The carrying ameunt of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
datermine whether there is any objeclive evidanca of impairment. If any such chjsctive evidence
exists, the asset's recoverable amount iz estimated ai the aend of each repeding perod. An
impairment kess is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
ameount, Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Under [FRS 2, the impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost, The impaitment reguirerments are based on a forward-locking expected credit loss model by
incorporating reasonable and supporiable ferecasts of future economic conditions available at the
reporting date. This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is determinad on a probabilty-weighted basis.

(h) Revenue recognition

Frovided thal it is probable that the sconomic banefits will flow te the Company and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can ba measured refably, service fes income is recognised in profit or boss whan
the irvastment managemant sarvice s provided,

(i) Expenses
All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis,
{j} Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Company if
(a) A persen, or a dose member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that persen:
) has contrel or jeint control sver the Compary;
(i)  has significant influence over the Company; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company's
parent.

(b} An entily is related to the Company if any of the following conditicns applies:

(l  Tha entity and the Company are members of the same group {which means ihat each
parent, suosidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others),

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entty (or an asscciate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other antity is a member).

(i) Both enttias are joint ventures of the same third party,

() One entity Is & joint ventura of & thind parly and the other enlily is an associate of the
third party.

(v}  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplayses of elther the
Company or an enfity related to the Company.

(v}  The entity is control'ed or jointly controlled by a person identfied in (3).

(i} A person identified in (&) has signiticant influence over the entity or is & member of the
key maragement personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

12

199/245



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS Maragsnant (Coprran) Linifed
Natus b Ficancal Stulsments for B yoar ended 81 Decomber 2053

2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)
{j) Related parlies (continued}

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected 1o
influence, or be influenced by, that persan in thelr dealings with the entily.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has Issued a number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective
for the current accounting pericd of the Cempany, The adoptien of these amendments had no
material impact to the Company's financial position, rasult of cperations or cash flows.

The Cempany has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
cument accounting period (Note 15},

4,  Total Interest Income

uso 2023 2022
Total interest income
“interest ncoms on cash and dus fram banks 8003 14,308
“Jotal interest income 60,034 14,396

All the above interest Incomea on Tinancial instruments measurad at amortised cost,
5. Service Fee Income

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assels in {rusts,

Revenue reprasents investment manageament fee income samed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

uso 2023 2022
Total seryice e INCOme et ee et en e eens
Service fee income 185,000 205,000
Total service fee income 185,000 205,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

UsD 2023 2022
SGeneral adminisirative and other operalingexpenses | ...
Bamkcharges . i i i R oy T (50)
Auditor rermuneration (6,350 (6,478)
e T T el P o {1081:“;&3] ....... {1061‘?5}
Total general adminisirative and other operating expenses {115,081) (112,703)

All of the above expenditures are payable to the Company's immediate holding company and the
immediate holding company sattles such expenditures on behalf of the Company,

11
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7. Taxation

There are no taxes on income of gains in the Cayman lslands and the Company has rsceivad an
undsrtaking from the Govemor in Council of the Cayman lslands exempling 1t from all local income,
profits and capital taxes untl 10 October 2089, Accardingly, no provision for income taxes is included
in theze financial statements.

B. Unconsolidated Structured Entities

Sponsored unconsolidated structured eniities

The Company considers iself the sponser of a structured entity when either its nama appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation from the
markel that the Company is asseciated with the structured enlity or the Company was involved in the
desian or sat up of the structured entity and has a form of involvamant with the structured antity.

Tha below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company wihere & fived annual

management fee of USD 5,000 (2022: USD 5,000) is received but no interest is held by the
Company as at 31 December 2023

12
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities {(continued)

IT Framium Fund (For Cualified Instl*.utlonal Investors Gnly)

‘Jgﬁ;h“Equﬁy ifr‘eﬁiudni‘s‘*'ra‘tééy?ur':d"‘ i

Frincipal / .5 Canadian Equity Incoma Fund (For Ciualfisd Instiutional Imvestors Only)

Glnhal REIT Tripla F‘mrprum Fuinch [F-:r Cluaﬁ'md Instititional Inuasturs Grly}

P M [ AEsEEsEEmEsEmsmrsssnEEsmEEEEREE

‘us Hngh Div Equity Bremium Fund {Fnr ‘Cluaiifiad institutional Investors. {}Inl}r}'

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

LIS Smal Cap Eq_nty Frav'mum Fund ILF::r ('.‘:ualﬁed Fnshmlmal In'mstnrs Only}

REE s R RS ] X et EEEE LR LT

LIS F'raferred REIT Ir‘mma Fum:l I:r-nr Guai‘ﬁad In ixtmltlmat |veastors Gn[y)

Japan Equity Fremium Fund (For Cuelfied Instiutional invastors Gy~

NE/MYAM US REIT ncome Fund [Far Cuaiifisd Insmur oral Iw&stc{s Only)

‘Daiwa UK th Dividerd ..g_.]rltr Fund {Ft:lr Quaﬁﬁad 'n=hb..|hmaj Investors Cnly)

Cawa WiL Veniures I, LD, Fund. ST e
Brazl Equity Alpha Fund {n-or Qualiiied Institutional investors Dnl}r}

‘Daiwa Brazilan RB&I Bur-.-d Fund {Fur Qualified Ins':tuhmal Investors Onltr}

‘Nmsa}r Japan Equ t'g.mcme Fu nd {Fur Oualf“ ad lnstltubu-nal Investors Cnly)

T T L T T T T T T T s —

AMP Australia REIT Fune th-r Gualmsd Institutional investors Cnly)

J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Coly)

gaﬁa American High Dividend Equity Quatiro Income Fund (For Qualified institutional investors
.I'I

Daiwa Amancan REIT Eluam'a Incnme Furd (For Gualffied Inattrhunal Invea‘ors Gn]!u

“Shinsel Wnrld ‘.*.frap Shahe T;-'pa (Fer Guahﬁnd Inshtutnnal Imrnstnrs Gn

=

S Mur-lapal Beond Fund

“Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund

Global H: g_h Dm:dEl'l.d tgul‘tj F‘ramn.lrr' Func: {an Gualrﬂad lnﬁh‘tuﬁﬂnal 1meisit:ur§‘0nly}

T TP ——

Meister s Colaction

BEMOGobalAdvantage | e

Fore1gn Denominated ian AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund

R e e T

5SB! Pictet Asia Hi-Tach Venture Fund
AUB Short Term Bond Fund " T B

Premium Carry Strategy Fund
* The funds were terminated during 2093,

The Company has not provided financial or ather support to unconsclidatad structured entities that it
was not contractually required to provide,

The Company does not currently have the intention to provide financial or other support 1o
unconsolidatad structured antities that it 1s not contractually required to provide.

13
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Cash and cash squivalends compriss:

UsD 2023 2022
Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks 2949019 1,884,033
Total cash and due from banks 2,248,018 1,984,033
10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

UsD 2023 2022
Other assets

Interast and fees receivable 185,264 205,864
Total other assets 185,864 205,864
usp 2023 2022
Other liabilities

Interest and fees payable 451,584 335,625
Total other liabilities 451,584 336,526
11. Share Capital

(a) Authorised and issued shara capital

2023 2022
Mo. of UsD Ma. of usp
shares shares

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of USD 1 sach 1,000,000 1.000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up: _
Ordinary shares 735,000 735,000 736,000 735,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied to recaire dividends as declared from time to Hime and are
entiled to one vote par share at general maetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Cempany's residual assets,

14
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11. Share Capital (continued)
{b} Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's abilily to
centinue as a going concern so that it can continue lo provida returns o shareholders, by pricing
services commensurately with the level of risk and by sacuring access to finance at 2 reasonzble
cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and
policies for distibution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management
objectives, Tha Company defines “capial” as induding all componants of equity,

The Company's capitel structura is regularly reviewsd and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adustments are made to the
capital structure in light of changes in econemic cenditions affecting the Cempany or the group, to
the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject 1o externally imposed capital requirements in the curent period,
12,  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidty, interest rate and foreign cumrency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business, These risks ars managed by the Company's financial management policies and
practices described balow,

(a) Cradit risk

The Company's crecit risk is primarily attributzble to amounts dus from group companies end cash at
bank. Cradit risk is defined as risk that one party to a financial instrument wil cause a financial loss to
another party by failing to discharge an cbligation. Management regularly monitars its risk exposure to
ensure that its credit risk is kept fo a8 minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each Tinandsl assat in the statement of financial posilion after
daeducting amy impairmeant allowance.

(b) Liguidity risk

The Company's polcy is to regularly moniter its liquidity requirements to satisfy its contractual and
reasonably foresesable obligations as they fall dus.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the Company's financial liabilities, which indudes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are ewpected to be sstied betwean thres fo twabe
manths.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it eans bank interest on cash

and deposits. At 31 December 2023 and 2022, a change in interest rates wou'd have no direct
matarial effect on the carnying value of the recognissd assets or lisbiites of the Company.

15
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12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
{d} Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposad to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions which give rise

o payebles that are denominated in Meng Mong dollars (*HKD"). As the HKD is pegged to the LISD,
the Company considers that the risk of movernents in exchange rates betwaan USD and HHD to be

insignificant.
(&) Fair values

The canying amounts of the Company's financial instruments camied at cost or amortised cost are
nat materially different from theis fair value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,

13. Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsswherz in the financial statements, the
Company entered into the following material relatec party transactions.

{a) Related parly balance sheet fransactions

31 December 2023 31 Decamber 2022
Parent Fellow Total Parent Fellow Total
Group Group
LUSD Companies Companies
Assets
Ciher assels - 185,854 185,864 - 205,664 206,864
Total assats — 185,864 185,864 — 205,864 205,864
Liabilities and
Equity
Cther liebliities 2 £51,584 o - 451,584 335,500 — 336,508
Share capital T285,000 — 7350 35,000 o 736,000
Total liabllities and
shareholders'
eguity 1,186,584 = 1,186,584 1,071,626 - 1,071,526
16
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13.  Material Related Parly Transactions (continued)

{b) Related party revenues and expenses

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Parant Fallow Total Parent Fellow Tatal
Group Graup
usp Companies Companies
Revenues
Seicaaivone. | o | s L T 205000 205,000
Total revenues — 185,000 185,000 — 205,000 208,000

{c) Remuneration of key management personnel

"Remuneration of Key management personnel (USD) 2023 2022
Cirector's Fea 108,543 108,175
Total Remunaration of key management personnel 108,643 108,175

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2023, the immediate parent of the Company is Credt Suisse (Hong Keng) Limited,
which is Incorporated in Heng Keng and the ultimate controlling party of the Company is U3S Group
A, which is incorporated in Switzedand. UBS Group AG preduces financial statements available fer
public use,

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023

Cartain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpratations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Company. Thess standards, amandments or interpretaions are not expected to
have a material impact on the entity in the cument or future reporting perieds and on foreseeable
future transactions.

16. Subsequent Events

In December 2023, the Board of Diractors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of LBS AG and
Credit Suisse AG, and both entities entered info a definitive merger agreement. The merger is
complated on 31 May 2024,

Effective 1 March 2024, the name of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited has been
changed to UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financlal statements were approved for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 14
June F0E4,

17
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Meister®s Collection (the "Series Trust"), a series trust of UBS Universal
Trust (Cayman) 111 (formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I111) (the "Master Trust'), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 October 2024, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets
attributable to the holder of redeemable participating units and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Series Trust as at 31 October 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("' IFRS Accounting
Standards™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (""ISAs™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the "Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (*'IESBA
Code™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 1ESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting process.
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Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust"s internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors” report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as
agoing concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

4 March 2025
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Independent Auditor®s Report
To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Credit Suisse
Management (Cayman) Limited) (the““Company””), which are set out on pages 4 to 17, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and

other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““ISAs®”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the

Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (““IESBA Code””), and we have Tfulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor™s Report (continued)
To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor™s Report (continued)
To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company*s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor™s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2024
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